STATE OF TEXAS,
| Plaintiff,

v

DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

and d/b/a CREDIT SERVICES TODAY
and CREDIT ALLIANCE GROUP,
INC., a/k/a CREDIT SERVICES
TODAY

§
§
§
§
- SHANE V. GARNER, INDIVIDUALLY,  §
§
§
§
§
Defendants. §

i W JUDICIAL DISTRICT

STATE’S ORIGINAL PETITION
FOR EX PARTE TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER WITH ASSET FREEZE,
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AND CIVIL PENALTIES

TO THE HONORABLE JUDGE OF SAID COURT:

The STATE OF TEXAS, acting by and through its ATTORNEY GENERAL GREG
ABBOTT, and his Cohsurrier Protection Division, files this Original Petition for Ex Parte
Temporary Restraining Order with Asset Freeze, Temporary and Permanent Injunctive Relief
and Civil Penalties, against SHANE V., GARNER, individually, and d/b/a CREDIT SERVICES
TODAY and CREDIT ALLIANCE GROUP, INC., a/k/a CREDIT SERVICES TODAY, and

would respectfully show the following:

SUMMARY OF THE CASE

Credit Alliance Group, Inc. (CAG) and Shane V. Garner have operated as an unlicensed
debt management service provider based in Dallas, Texas, for over six years. Texas law prohibits
any person from providing such debt management services without first obtaining an approved
registration from the Texas Consumer Credit ‘Commissioner. Despite representing in customer

contracts that they operate in compliance with Texas law, neither CAG, nor its owner, Shane V.
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, ‘Gamer has rever obtained such’ ‘a registration. CAG advcrtised nationwide targeting consumers '
‘ bkwho were already facmg serlous ﬁnancral trouble fand representmg that, for a fee CAG was :
typrcally able to settle customers debts for 20 60% of outstandmg balances CAG promlsed “If :
Credlt Alhance Group does not perform YOU won t have /tO pay us a dlme'” CAG promrsed to
“ hold customer funds in fully 1nsured accounts solely under the customers control untll debts’
were successfully settled. Instead, CAG not only charged unreasonable fees for services never
provided, it also unlawfully co-mingled and diverted these customers’ personal funds for its own
benefit and has failed to refund these monies to cuStomers despite numerous requests. As a
result, hundreds of customers have lost thousands of dollars, their consumer debts have grown,
and their credit ratings are worse than before signing up with Credit Alliance Group.
Because of such conduct, Shane V. Garner, d/b/a Credit Services Today, and Credit
Alliance Group, Inc;, also l<nown as Credit Serv’ice‘s Today, are charged in this suit with
“violations of the Texas Decepti\}e Practices - Consumer Protection Act and violations of the
Texas ConsumerDebt Management Services Act. By this suit, the State seeks a Court ordered
restraining order and injunction to prevent Defendants from engaging in such false, misleading
and deceptive business practices and also seeks to secure assets wrongfully obtained by
Defendants so as to enable restitution for consumers, appropriate civil penalties, attorney's fees
and costs. | |
1. DISCOVERY CONTROL PLAN
1.1 Pursuant to Texas Rule of Civil Procedure 190.1, the discovery in this case is

intended to be conducted under Discovery Level 2.

1.2 This case is not subject to the restrictions of expedited discovery under

TRCP 169 because:
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‘ a) The rehef sought by the State 1ncludes non-monetary mJunctlve rellef and
b) The States cla1ms for monetary rehef 1nclud1ng penaltles consumer redress and
- : “attorneys fees and costs are in excess of $1 OOO 000 OO
’ 2 NATURE AND PURPOSE OF THIS SUIT |
. 21 | ThlS is an enforcement actlon brought by Texas Attorney General Greg Abbott
through his Consumer Protection Division, in the name of the STATE OF TEXAS and in the
public interest pursuant to the authority granted by §17.47 of the Texas Deceptive Trade
Practices-Consumer Protection Act, TEX, BUS. & COM. ACOD_E ANN. §17.41 et seq. (DTPA)
upon the ground that Defendants have engaged in false, deceptive and misleading acts and
practices in the course of trade and commerce as defined in, and declared unlawful by,
§817. 46(a) and (b) of the DTPA. The Texas Attorney General is authorized to seek temporary
restraining orders, civil penalties, redress for consumers and other identifiable persons harmed by
Defendants acts and practices, and other injunctive relief in enforcement actlons, such as this
one, frled‘pursuant to Section 17.47 of the DTPA. Further, in such enfor¢cement actions, this
Court is authorized to make such additional orders or judgments as are necessary to compensate
fdentiﬁable persons for actual damages; or to restore money or broperty-, real or personal, which
may have been acquired by means of any unlawful act or practice. TEX. BUS. & COM. CODE
. ANN. §17.47(d).
3. DEFENDANTS
3.1 Defendant CREDIT ALLIANCE GROUP, INC., is a Texas Corporation.
Defendant CREDIT ALLIANCE ;;GR(‘)UP, INC,, a/k/a Credit Services Today, can be
served through its registered agent, SHANE V. GARNER, at its offices at 1717 Main

- Street, Suite 5800, Dallas, Texas 75201, or, his home address 3622 Edgewater Street, Dallas,

State’s Original Petition for Injunctive Relief and Civil Penalties
State v. Shane V. Garner, individually, and Credit Alliance Group, Inc. Page 3 of 22



’Texas, 752l)5 or rvherever he may be found. e |
o : “3 2 Defendant SHANE V GARNER 1nd1v1dually, is the owner and CEO of .
i Defendant CREDIT ALLIANCE GROUP INC located at l717 Maln Street Sulte 5800 Dallas
‘ :Texas 75201 and also does busrness as. Credrt Serv1ces Today at the same address Defendant
. E'SHANE V. GARNER d/b/a Credlt Servrces Today, may be served at hlS home address,

3622 Edgewater Street, Dallas, Texas, 75205 or wherever he may be found.

4. VENUE
4.1  Venue of this suit lies in Dallas County, Texas, for the following reasons:
a. Under TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. CODE ANN. § 15.002(a)(1), venue is
| proper because all or a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to
the claim occurred in the county of suit; and
b. Under DTPA § 17.47(b), venue is proper because Defendants have done
business in the county of suit.
5. PUBLIC INTEREST

5.1 Plaintiff, STATE OF TEXAS, has reason to believe that Defendants are engaging
in, have engaged in, and may continue to engage in, the unlawful acts or practices set l‘orth
below, that Defendants have, by means of these unlawfhl acts and practices, caused damage to or
acquired money or property from identiﬁable persons, and that Defendants’ conduct adversely
affects the lawful conduct of trade and commerce, thereby directly or indirectly affecting the
people of this State. Therefore, the Consumer Protection Division of the Office of the Attorney

General of the State of Texas believes and is of the opinion that these proceedings are in the

public interest.

6. TRADE AND COMMERCE
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6.l Defendants have at all times described herein engaged in trade and commerce as
‘that term is deﬁned by §17 45(6) of the DTPA.
7 ACTS OF AGENTS | |
. 7.1 Whenever it is alleged in this petltlon that Defendants dld any act or th1ng, 1t is - :
‘meant that‘ Defendants jointly and severally, performed or partlcipated in such act or thmg or
| that such act was performed by the officers, agents or employees of said Defendant, and in each
instance, the officers, agents or employees of said Defendants that were then authorized to act
did in fact act on behalf of Defendants or otherwise acted under the guidance and direction of the
Defendants.1 5 )
8. NOTICE BEFORE SUIT
8.1  The Consumer Protection Division informed Defendants in general of the alleged
unlawful conduct described. below, at least.seven days before filing suit, as may be required by
§17.47(a) of the DTPA.
9. APPLICABLE LAW
9.1  Plaintiff, is authorized to bring action to restrain, by temporary restraining order,
temporary injunction, and permanent injunction, deceptiveacts and practices in the business of
trade and commerce pursuant to § 17.47(a) of the DTPA.

9.2 This Court is authorized, pursuant to § 17.47(d) of the DTPA, to “make such

! Texas law is well settled that corporate agents may be held personally responsible and individually liable under the DTPA for
wrongful acts. Light v. Wilson, 663 S.W.2d 813 (Tex. 1983). It is not necessary to pierce the corporate veil in order to impose
personal liablity. Leyendecker v. Wechter, 683 S.W.2d 369 (Tex. 1984). Liability of such a corporate officer is based on his own
actions not his status as an agent. It is not necessary for such an employee to act knowingly or intentionally in order to be
personally liable. Miller v. Keyser, 90 S.W.3d 712 (Tex. 2002). Furthermore, actionable DTPA violations may include boih
current misrepresentations as well as a failure to perform a future promise. Formosa Plastics v. Presidio, 960 S.W.2d 41 (Tex.
1996). DTPA § 17.46(c)(1) authorizes Texas courts, in actions brought by the Attorney General’s Consumer Protection Division,
to be guided to the extent possible, by the interpretations given by the Federal Trade Commission and federal courts to the
Federal Trade Commission Act. [15 U.S.C.A. § 45(a)(1)]. Federal courts have often held principals or controlling persons of
corporations individually liable under the FTCA for the wrongful and deceptive actions of the businesses they conirol on the
basis that they should have had knowledge or awareness of the misrepresentatlons See FTC v. Amy Travel, 875 F.2d 564 (70
"Cir. 1988), and FTC v. Publishing Clearing House, 104 F.3d 1168 (9™ Cir. 1997), and FTC v. American Standard, 874 F.Supp.
1080 (C.D. Cal. 1994), and FTC'v. Pioneer Enterp., 1992 WL 372350 (D. Nev. 1992).
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,r ‘addltlonal orders or Judgments as are necessary to compensate 1dent1ﬁable persons for actual

‘ .'damages or to restore moneyor property, real or personal kWthh may have been acqulred by‘
- ‘means of any unlawful act or practlce ’ . . |

: ; 93 . TEX FIN CODE ANN § 394 204(a) prov1des that “A person regardless of
: whether located in thls state may not prov1de debt management serv1ces to a consumer in th1s ‘,
state unless the person is reglstered with the commissioner.”

9.4  TEX. FIN. CODE ANN. § 394.202(6) defines ‘Debt Management Service’ to
mean, “a service in which a provider obtains or seeks to obtain a concession from one or more
creditors on behalf of a consumer.” , |

9.5 : TEX FIN. CODE ANN.’§" 394.202(3-a) defines ‘Concession’ to mean, “assent to
repayment of a debt on terms more favorable to a consumer than the terms of the agreement
under which the consumer became indebted to the creditor.";

9.6  TEX.FIN. CODE ANN. § 394.203(e) provides that,»“This subchapter applies to a
perSon Who_seeks to eyade its applicability by any device, subterﬁ.lge, or pretense.”

9.7  TEX. FIN. CODE ANN § 394.211(a) requires that, “A provider must use a trust
account for the management of all money paid by or on behalf of a consumer and received by the
provider for disbursement to the consumer's creditor. A provider may not commingle the money
in a trust account established for the benefit o’f consumers with any operating‘ funds of the
provider, A provider shall exercise due care to appropriately manage the funds in the trust
account.” |

9.8 TEX. FIN. CODE ANN. § 394.211(b) requires that, “The trust account must at all

‘times be materially in balance with and reconciled to the consumers' accounts. Failure to

maintain that balance is cause for a summary suspension of registration under Section 394.204.”
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9.9 - TEX. Em; CODE ANN., § 394211 (c) requires tha}it,‘ “qf a tfusi accouht does not

cdf;ta‘in sufﬁcieritf monéy to coVer t};le‘ éggregaté cohsumér ‘balancc;s;" a‘nd the prdﬁider 'vhr;’ls hdt

yéorr’ected thé déﬂciency V\v/‘iythi‘n 48 hbur_spf diéédvery, the proyider sﬁail thify the :cvovmmissi_oner

j By tele‘ph’orv;e;‘ facé,imile; ele’ctfohic mail, 6r ‘other",meth‘od apprdﬁ}ed by the commissioner, and
providé written hoﬁce including a deScripﬁon of th‘e‘\" férhedial aéﬁbh take’n’.“”, , |

9.10 TEX. FIN. CODE ANN. § 394.202(”12) defines a ‘Trust Account’ to mean an

account that is:

(A) established in a federally insured financial institution;

(B) separate from any account of the debt management service provider;

(C) designated as a "trust account” or other appropriate designation indicating that the
money in the account is not money of the provider or its officers, employees, or agents;
(D) unavailable to creditors of the provider; and '

(E) used exclusively to hold money paid by consumers to the provider for disbursement
to creditors of the consumers and to the provider for the disbursement of fees and
contributions .earned and agreed to in advance.

9.11  TEX. FIN. CODE ANN. '§ 394.213 requires fhat, “A providef has a duty to a
consumer Who receives debt management services from the provider to ensure that client money
held by fhe provider is managed properly at all times.”

9.12  TEX. FIN. CODE ANN. § 394.2095 requires that, “If a provider or a consur.ner'
cancels a debt management service agreement, the provider shall immediately return to the
consumer: (1) any money of the consumer held in trust by the provider for the consumer's
benefit; and (2) 65 percent of any portion of the account set-up fee received under Section
394.210(g)(1) that has not been credited against settlement fees.”

| 9.13 TEX. FIN. CODE ANN. § 394.215(9.} provides that, “An agreement for debt
management services between a consumer and a person that is not registered under this

subchapter is void.”

9.14 TEX. FIN. CODE ANN. § 394.215(b) provides that, “A consumer is entitled to
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recover all fees paid by the consumer under a void agreement, costs, and reasonable attorney's

fees.”

o lon

10. EXHIBITS |

In support of th1s petltlon the State rehes upon and adopts by reference for all

purposes the attached exh1b1ts as follows o

(2)

(b)

©)

@

©
®
®
)

(1)
()

Texas

11.1

Exhibit A, Letter of January 3, 2011, from Bryan Garner, Vice President, Credit
Alliance Group, Inc., to the Texas Office of Consumer Credit Commissioner;

Exhibit B, Excerpts of sworn statement under oath of former CAG employee
conducted on February 22, 2013;

Exhibit C, Letter of August 9, 2012 from the Texas Office of Consumer Credit

Commissioner, to CAG, denying registration;

Exhibit D, Customer Affidavit #1;
Exhibit E, Customer Affidavit #2 -‘Credit Services Today customer;
Exhibit F, CAG Customer Enrollment Marketing Packet and 2009 Contract; ;

Exhibit G, CAG Customer Enrollment Marketing Packet and 2010 Contract;

- Exhibit H, Sample Customer Escrow Account Balance Records produced by

Credit Alliance Group, Inc.;

Exhibit I, Credit Services Today documents (a/k/a Credit Alliance Group, Inc.);

Exhibit J, Affidavit of Kelle Slaughter, Investigator, Office of the Attorney
General of

11. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

Credit Alliance Group, Inc., a/k/a Credit Services Today, is a Texas Corporation,

with its headquarters in Dallas, Texas. For several years, since at least February 2006, CAG has

purported to offer and perform debt mranagement services for consumers having difficulty with

their personal finances. Defendants have targeted consumers with unsecured debts, claiming
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‘ part1c1patlon in Defendants debt management serv1ces will result in settlement of the :
»consumers debts for 20 to 60 percent of the outstandmg balances w1th1n 6 to 36 months of
| 51gn1ng up W1th CAG ‘

ll 2 For th1s serulce CAG charged serv1ce fees sometlmes totallng up to 35% of the |
: cl1ent’s total debts along w1th add1t1onal monthly fees to consumers who were already facmg
serious financial trouble. (Exh1b1t F, page 7). The cover page of enrollment packages has
included the promise that customers would not owe Defendants “a dime” if Defendants failed to
perform as promised. (Exhibit G, page 1). VCAG failed to provide the debt settlement services for
which it charged fees to consumers. (Exhibit D, page 1 and Exhibit E, page 1).

11.3  Shane ‘V._Garner is the owner, Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of
Credit Alliance Group, Inc., and the controlling: person overseeing CAG"sbusiness operations
from its corporate headquarters in Dallas, Texas, and also does business as Credit Services
Today.

| 114 CAG has marketed its services through its website,

www.CreditAllianceGroup.net, as well as emails and marketing materials. CAG has delivered an

enrollment package, includi‘ng a contract, to consumers along with an electronic funds transfer
\authorization for CAG to begin monthly withdrawals of funds from customers” personal bank
accounts. CAG enrollment materials and contracts represent to consumers that their funds will be
held in an FDIC insured escrow account under the customer’s control. (Exhibit F, pages 2 and 7;
and Exhibit G, pages 5-6). CAG has made this representation to the Texas Office of Consumer
Credit Commissioner by speciﬁcally stating that, “We do not hold any trust accounts for the
consumer. The trust accounts are the sole property of the consumer and we do not hold any funds

on the consumer’s-behalf.” (Exhibit A, Letter of January 3, 2011, from Bryan Garner, CAG Vice
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oy

"President"to'the Tei‘(asOfﬁce of Consumer Credit'Commissioner) CAG“enrollment‘packages :

have 1ncluded an 1ns1gn1a drrectly under the CAG corporate logo statmg, “Member FDIC” “

| CAG is not a member of the FDIC (EXhlblt F pages 2- 10)
e ‘llb 5 CAG not only charged fees for servrces ‘never provrded | 1t also diverted‘
‘ customers fundsk entrusted for negotration and payment of ‘consumer debts, for 1ts own beneﬁt
CAG has commingled its customers’ funds in CAG’s own operatlng account, mcluding the
account Defendant GARNER used to pay personal bills. (Exhibit B, pages 3-4 and pages 7-15,
Excerpts of Sworn Statement of former CAG employee, conducted on February 22, 2013)

11.6 Dlssatlsﬁed customers have d1scovered not only that they cannot get a refund of
amounts paidvas advance fees, but that they likewise have no control over, and cannot recover
any of the funds CAG promised to hold in escrow, for purposes of resolving consumer debts.
(Exhibits D & E, Consumer Afﬁdavits). CAG has operated as an unregistered provider of debt
management services in Texas. CAG has over 800 client customers (Exhibit B, page 8, line 24
through page 9; line 9). CAG’s own records, for 52 of its more than 800 customers, indicate
CAG holds over $180,000.00 for 52 customers in escrow funds alone. (Exhibit Ii, pages 1-52)

11.7 Credit Alliance Group, Inc. has operated for 7 years without securing a required
Texas registration from the Texas Office of Consumer Credit Commissioner (OCCC) (Exhibit C,
page 1). CAG failed to disclose this lack of registration in its consumer advertising and
communications with clients,

11.8 CAG and GARNER have also continued to -do business as “Credit Services
Today”, receiving customer funds under the unregistered name of “Credit Services Today”.
GARNER has represented himself to be the CEO and President of “Credit Services Today”, and

its website has represented that “Credit Services Today” is owned by Credit Alliance Group, Inc.
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‘ (Exhlbit E, pages l -6 and ExhibltI pages 1- 3) | o “
| 12. VIOLATIONS OF TEXAS’ CONSUMER DEBT MANAGEMENT SERVICES ACT
,1 2.1‘ ; Defendants in the course and conduct of trade and commerce, have engaged in’
| conduct in direct v1olat10n of the Texas Consumer Debt Management Serv1ces Act Texas_ : ‘k
Finance Code Chapter 394 1nclud1ng, but not limited to:
a. Prov1d1ng debt management services in Texas without first securing the
legally required registration from_the Texas Consumer Credit Commissioner in
violation of TEX. FIN. CODE ANN. § 394.204(a);
b. ‘Acting in reliance on void contractual authorizations from clients ‘and
misrepresenting the validity of such void debt: management services contracts to
clients by failing to disclose to customers that the contracts were void due to
Defendants’ failures to obtain a registration -to proilide consumer debt
management ‘Services in Texas in violation of TEX. FIN. CODE ANN. §
394.21 S(aj;
C. Failing to use a trust account for the management of money paid by or on
behalf of a consumer, and received by the provider of debt management services,
for disbursement to the consumer’s creditors in violation of TEX. FIN. CODE
ANN. § 394.211(a);
d. Commingling consumers’ funds with operating funds of the provider in
violation of TEX. FIN. CODE ANN. § 394.211(a);
e. Failure to maintain a trust account with funds materially in balance with

and reconciled to the consumers’ accounts in violation of TEX. FIN. CODE

'ANN. § 394.211(b);
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f ‘ Engaglng 1n unfalr deceptlve and- unconsclonable acts or practlces 1n

: d connectlon Wlth a serV1ce prov1ded to a consumer in Vlolatlon of TEX FIN.
CODE ANN § 394 212(a)(9)

o g ;‘ By fa111ng to malntaln a trust account vulth funds materlally in balance_' ‘
“ wtth and reconclled to customer accounts at all tlmes, Defendants have breached |
their duties to ensure that client money held by the provider is managed properly

at all times in violation of TEX. FIN. CODE ANN. § 394.213.

13. VIOLATIONS OF THE DECEPTIVE TRADE PRACTICES ACT

13.1  Defendants, have engaged in false, misleading, and deceptive acts and

practices declared unlawful in sections - §17.46 (a) and (b) of the DTPA as follows:

a. By offerlng for sale, and sellmg, thelr debt management services W1thout '
obtaining the requlred reglstratlon to provide debt management services,
Defendants have engaged in, or are engaging in, acts or practices that are false,
misleading and deceptive acts and '}‘)ractices in violation of §1,7'46 (a) and (b) 2),
(b) (3) and (b) (5) of the DTPA;

b. By advertising, offering and/or performing debt management services
" without disclosing their failure to secure the prerequisite registration legally
required to provide such services pufsuant to TEX. FIN. CODE ANN. §
394.204(a), Defendants have misrepresented, or are misrepresenting themselves,
and their debt management services, to have sponsorship, approval and
characteristics they do not have in violation of §17.46 (b)(5) and (24) of the
DIPA;

C. By representing that Defendants typically resolved customer debts for as
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little as 20 bercent of the outStanding balanee‘ of the debt When euch were not
~typical results for CAG chents Defendants ’have engaged in, or are engaglng 1n s
: false mlsleading or deceptive acts or practicesl in v101at10n of §17 46 (b)(S) and‘ ‘
‘(9) of the DTPA by representing the1r debt management serv1ces havefl
characteristics or beneﬁts whlch they do not have ‘ | |
d. By failing to dieclose that Defendant Credit AlliancenServices,' Inc., was
illegally offering debt managernent services when in fact it never obtained an
approved registration as a debt management services provider from the Texas
Consumer Credit Commissioner ~Causing confusion and misunderstanding as to
the approval and certification of Defendants’ debt management services in
violation of DTPA §17.46(b)(2);
e. By misrepresenting that each customer’s funds would be held in a fully
insured individual Comerica savings account, solely under the customer’s control,
in order to induce customers to enroll, when in fact Defendants never set up such
individual accounts for most clients, failed to maintain funds within the individual
customer accounts that were created, failed to maintain any trust account with a
balance materially in balance and reconciled to the customers’ accounts and
failing to comply with client requests for refunds of such monies, Defendants are
engaging in, or have engaged in, acts or practices that are false, misleading and
deceptive acts and practices in violation of §17.46 (a) and (b)(5), (b)(7), (b)(9)
and (b)(12) of the DTPA by representing their debt management services to have
characteristics, benefits, approvals, and certifications they do not have and by

misrepresenting their customer contracts to have rights they did not have and

State’s Original Petition for Injunctive Relief and Civil Penalties
State v. Shane V. Garner, individually, and Credit Alliance Group, Inc. Page 13 of 22



| oblrgatlons Wthh are prohrbrted by law
f. By farhng to disclose that chents contracts Were Vord as a matter of law b
dueto Defendants fa11ure to obtarn‘ the prerequ1s1te reglstratron from the Texas |
' Consumer Credrt Commrssroner Defendants have engaged 1n or are engagrng in, “ “ |
false, m1slead1ng or deceptrve acts’ er practlces in Vrolatron of §17 46 (b)(12) of :
the DTPA by representing that an agreement confers or 1nvolves rights, remedies,
~ and obligations which it does not have or involve and which are prohibited by
law;
14. REQUEST FOR INJUNCTlVE RELlEF UNDER THE DTPA.

4.1 DEFEN-DANTS‘ have engaged, and continue to engage, in the unlawful deceptive
acts and 'p'ractices herein described, and the State has reason to believe. that, unless enjoined,
Defendants will continue to violate the laws of the State of Texas and cause immediate;
irreparable injury, loss and damage to the State of Texas and to the general public.” Upon final
trial of these issues against DEFENDANTS, pursuant to § 17.47 of the DTPA, Plaintiff requests
a temporary and permanent injunction to restrain DEFENDANTS from engaging in such

unlawful acts or practices.

15. IMMEDIATE EX PARTE TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER

2 When the State seeks injunctive relief pursuant to an authorized statute [e.g. DTPA §17.47(a)); the Texas Supreme
Court has held that the State does not have to prove immediate and irreparable injury. Nor does the Court have to
balance equities when the State litigates in the public’s interest. When a statute is being violated, it is within the
province and duty of the trial court to restrain it. State v. Texas Pet Foods, 591 SW2d 800 (Tex. 1979). The State has
a relaxed burden because it acts in the public interest. When the State brings an action in the public interest and on
behalf of consumers, harm is presumed United States v. Odessa Union Warehouse, 833 F2d 172 (9™ Cir, 1987),
Shafer v. United States, 229 F2d 124 (4™ Cir) Cert. Den. 351 US 931 (1956). The statute’s express language

supercedes the common law injunctive relief elements such as imminent.harm or irreparable injury and lack of an
_adequate remedy at law ... [The State] need only demonstrate to the court its reason to believe that (1) any person is
engaging in, has engaged in, or is about to engage in any act or practice declared to be unlawful by the DTPA, and
(2) that the proceedings would be in the public interest. West v. State, 212 SW3d 513 (Tex.App.- Austin, 2006, no
pet.). The state is likewise not required to prove the likelihood of future violations nor is required to show probable
injury. Ibid at515. Injunctive relief may be granted to the State upon a showing of only a v1olat1on of a statute. Gulf
Holding Corp. v. Brazoria County, 497 S.W.2d 614 at 619 (Tex. Civ. App.- -Houston [14™] 1973, writ refd n.r.e.).
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e AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF NECESSARY TO PRESERVE DEFENDANTS' ASSETS

‘15 1 Pursuant to § 17. 47 of the DTPA the State requests 1mmed1ate rehef by way of an :

“‘ Ex Parte Temporary Restrammg Order and Temporary In_]unctron to prevent contmued vrolatron e

of law by Defendants therr ofﬁcers agents servants and employees and to freeze the assets of L

"“Defendants to preserve and protect customers advanced fees and funds that were entrusted to
’Defendants under the representatron that such funds would be held in trust solely under the -
customer’s control, for use to negotiate and resolve customer debts, so that at final trial
identifiable customers of Defendants may obtain restitution to which they are entitled. As
described herein, there is evidence that before final trial Defendants are likely to waste or secrete
the advanced fees to avoid paying restitution to these consumers. The Statefs 'applicati'on fora
temporary restrainin‘g"order‘is‘ authorized by Section 17.47 of the DTPA. TEX. BUS. & COM.
CODE §17. 47(a) | | | |

15.2 Pursuant to § 17.47 of the DTPA and Dallas County Civil Courts Local Rule
| 2.02(a)‘and(b), no notice of this suit and apphcatron for temporary restraining order along with
the proposed order has or will be presented to the opposing parties before the application and
proposed order are to be presented to the Court for decision for reason that irreparable harm is
imminent and: or that relevant records and assets may be removed,' secreted or destroyed. A
temporary restraining order is necessary because immediate harm and injury are presurned if a
law is being violated. Exhibits D, E and J, attached hereto and incorporated herein, are affidavits
in support of this request for injunctive reliefr Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein,

is the sworn statement under oath of a former CAG accounting department employee taken on

February 22, 2013.

15.3  Without such immediate temporary relief, Defendants are likely to waste or
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' secrete the advanced fees and funds clients entrusted to Defendants to settle clients debts, to'
o av01d paying restltutlon to these consMers Defendants have control/owe consumers fundsj-f
yentrusted to Defendants for purposes of setthng consumers debts and advanced fees from.. :
: consumers of over $187 000 00. The Texas Attornev General’s Ofﬁce 1s 1n possessron of over i
- 100 consumer complaints against Defendants for failure to perform services and fallure to make :
refunds to customers as requrred by law. According to its own records produced so far for a
limited 52 of its over 800 customers, CAG’s own records indicate it owes over $187,000.00 of
purportedly escrowed customer funds.
15.4 'Defendantsmaintain and are signatories on the following knovvn accounts, which
assets should be frozen pursuant to Temporary Restraining Order issued by this Court:
1. Comerica Bank, Account Numbers:
#it###1843 in the name of Credit Alliance Group, Inc.
#####4736 in the name of Shane Garner
2. Unity One Credit Union, Account Number:
#####6S18 in the name of Shane Garner
####H86S1 in the name of Shane Garner
15.5 Pursuant to Dallas County Civil Courts Local Rule 2.02(c), the undersigned
counsel hereby certifies that to the best of | counsel's knowledge, this case in which the
application for temporary restraining order is presented, is not subject to transfer under Dallas

County Civil Courts Local Rule 1.06.

16. REQUEST TO CONDUCT EXPEDITED DISCOVERY PRIOR TO TEMPORARY
INJUNCTION HEARING
16.1. Plaintiff requests leave of this Court to conduct expedited discovery, including the
issuance of subpoenas, taking telephonic, oral, video, written, and other depositions of witnesses,

and to require production of documents in connection therewith, prior to any scheduled

temporary injunction hearing upon reasonable- shortened notice to the Defendants and their

State’s Original Petition for Injunctive Relief and Civil Penalties
State v. Shane V. Garner, individually, and Credit Alliance Group, Inc. ] Page 16 of 22



_attorneys, if known. -

17 DISGORGEMENT

17.1 Defendants assets are subject to the equltable remedy of dlsgorgement whlch is
' jthe forced rehnqulshment of all beneﬁts that Would be unjust for Defendants to reta1n 1nclud1ng. :
all ill- gotten gams and beneﬁts or proﬁts that result from Defendants ‘unlawful conduct
Defendants should be ordered to dlsgorge all monies fraudulently taken from individuals,
businesses, and any governmental entity together with all of the proceeds, profits, income,
interest and accessions thereto. Such disgorgement should be for the benefit of identifiable
persons, victimized by Defendants, and the State of Texas.

18. WRIT TO ISSUE WITHOUT BOND

18.1. The State requests that the Clerk of the Court issue such Writs of Injunction
and/or Writs of Restraint pursuant to any Injunction or Ex Parte Temporary Restraining Order
issued by this Court in conformity with the law, and that same be issued and be effective without
the execution and filing of a bond as Plaintiff, the State of Texas, is exempt from such bonds
under TEX. BUS. AND COM. CODE ANN. § 17.46(b).

19. PRAYER

Wherefore premises considered Plaintiff, the State of Texas, respectfully requests the
following relief: |

19.1  That Defendants be cited according to law to appear and answer herein;

19.2  That this Court find that Defendants have violated and will continue to violate the
law as alleged in this Petition and further find, that unless immediately restrained by this
Honorable Court, Defendants will continue to violate the laws of the State of Texas and cause

immediate, irreparable-injury, loss and damage to the State of Texas and to the general public;
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‘that thls Court therefore 1ssue an- Ex Parte Temporary Restralning Order wrth Asset Freeze :
w1thout bond that the Clerk issue wrlts to be served upon Defendants and other third pames in
| possession of assets of Defendants and each ofﬁcer agent servant ernployee attorney and any
: other person acting 1n concert orparticlpation w1th any Defendant WhO receives actual notice of o
' 'the order 1nclud1ng such banklng or, ﬁnanclal depos1tory 1nst1tut10ns holding property or assets'
in the name of, for the benefit of, or under the control of any of the Defendants, individually or
severally, in whole or in part, from withdrawing, spending, concealing, encumbering, removing,
dissipating, khypothecating, transferring or releasing any monies or property on deposit in
accounts under the name of or under the control of any Defendant, and from making
representations, and engaging inthe unlawful false, misleading, deceptive acts and practices set
out in paragraph 19.2‘ below, permitting expedited discovery by the State in advance of the
Temporary Injunction Hearing, ordering Defendants to provide information about insurance
policies, surety bonds, financial accounts,real property and other assets and property prior to the
temporary injunction hearing,' directing such banking or financial depository institutions‘ and‘
others holding property or assets in the name of, for the beneﬁt of, or under the control of any of ‘
the Defendants individually or severally, to provide information to Plaintiff concermng any and
all such accounts, funds or assets of any type, and ordering the Defendants to appear for
Ternporary Injunction Hearing within 14 days therefrom;

19.2  That after due notice and hearing, a Temporary Injunction be issued; and upon
final hearing a Permanent Injunction be issued, restraining and enjoining each Defendant
(including any business entities established by Defendants), and each officer, agent, servant,

employee, attorney and any other person acting in concert or participation with any Defendant,

who receives actual notice of the order, including such banking or financial depository
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institutions holding assets i the name of or under the control of any of the Defendants,
r‘individnailyb )‘ojr Severaily;‘ from rnaking representatinns;'inngithe aete,, and engaging H in‘ the’
unlawful 'faise, misleadlng or deceptiveaets: or praétices‘ 1n the cenduct of trade nr: cornrnerce
1 w1th1n t}ieStatef:df Texas as_ fo_lloy\’)vs:k’i |
e a Transferring, cdnceali’ng; deétroying,' or remd\ring, ‘frdm the 'jurisdiyctio‘n of this

Court any books, records, documents, or other written or cornputer generated rnaterials relating
to the business of Defendants currently or hereafter in Defendants’ possession, custody or control
except in response to further orders or subpoenas in this cause. |

b. Transferring, spending, hypothecating, concealing, encumbering, withdrawing,
removing or allowing the transfer, removal, or withdrawal from any ﬁnaneial institution or from
the jurisdietion of tni‘s‘Court any money, stocks, bonds, assets, notes, eqnipment, funds, accounts
receivable, po,licies of insurance, trust a‘greements, or other property, real, personal or mixed,
wherever situated, Belonging to or owned by, in the possession or custody of, standing in the
name of, or claimed by Defendants without’ further order of this Court. |

c. Advertising, promoting, facilitating or providing debt management services,
credit monitoring services, credit counseling services or otherwise conducting business in Texas
as a debt managernent_services organization, or as an agent or employee of any person providing
debt management services, credit monitoring services, credit counseling services or debt
collection services in the State of Texas.

d. Entering into any contract with any person for the purposes of the Defendant
advertising, promoting, facilitating, or providing debt management services, credit counseling

services, credit monitoring services or debt collection services

€. - Accepting any money or funds from any person for the purpose of advertising,
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promoting, facrhtatmg or provrding debt management services, credit monltoring services, credlt
. counsehng servrces or debt collection serv1ces
- f Advertlsmg, offering for sale or selhng any good or serV1ce w1thout clearly and . |
‘ conspicuously disclosmg all the materlal terms of that good or servrce prior to accepting anyi
form of payment for that good or seryice | k
g. Representing that a business entity, program orr’service affiliated with Defendants
‘has benefits, sponsorships or afﬁliations which it does not have.

h. Misrepresenting the benefits received, or which may be received, by any
consumer using a good or service offered for sale by the defendant. This 1ncludes but is not
limited to, representing that a customer is able to improve his/her personal credit rating through
the use of any program offered by the Defendant. |

i. : Opening or calising to be opened any safe deposit boxes or storage facilities titled
in the name of Defendants or any of Defendants' assumed names, or subject to access or control
by Defendants; without providing Plaintiff and the Court prior notice by motion seeking such

access.

19.3. That upon final trial additional judgment be granted the State against Defendants,

jointly and severally for:

a. civil penalties of up to $20,000.00, per violation, to the State of Texas for each
violation of the DTPA by the Defendants;

b. civil penalties in an amount up to $250,000.00 as allowed by law under the
DTPA, due to Defendants committing acts and practices that were calculated to acquire or

deprive money or other property from consumers who were 65 years of age or older when the act v

or practice occurred; -
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e i 1 kthe’dis’go‘fgement of Defén;lants' asscts,’aé prbvided:by -l'aw;rr
-d. Defendants to p’ayty Arc‘stitﬁti()‘n to identiﬁéble':clons‘umefs‘and dther pérsOﬁs,‘ ektsv,‘ '
providgdfby law;“ o S o
': e v Deféﬁdaﬁts to pay Pre -judgm'em aﬁd ’Po’s;c'-judgrﬁerit ifnte‘re,s“t:’o‘r;’ an awaids of -

. restituﬁon, damages or civil penalties,‘as pro‘,vide"d by law; and
f. ‘Defendants to pay all costs of Court, costs of investigation, and reasonable

attorneys' fees pursuant to TEX.GOVT.CODE ANN § 402.006(c).

19.4. Plaintiff further prays for such other relief to which Plaintiff may be justly entitled

as warranted by the evidence and the Court’s authority.

Respectfully submitted,

GREG ABBOTT
Attorney General of Texas

DANIEL T. HODGE
First Assistant Attorney General

JOHN B. SCOTT
Deputy Attorney General for Civil Litigation

JOHN T. PRUD’HOMME
Chief, Consumer Protection Division

ROBERT ROBINSON - SBN: 00794545
Lead Counsel of Record

ANDREW D. LEONIE - SBN: 12216500
STEVE ROBINSON - SBN: 24046738
MADALYN WELLS - SBN: 24027430
Assistant Attorneys General

Consumer Protection Division ,
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
1412 Main Street, Suite 810
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Attachments
1 Exhlblt A

Exhibit C

Exhibit D
Exhibit E
Exhibit F
Exhibit G
Exhibit H
Exhibit I
Exhibit J -

°®

Dallas, Texas 75202 ‘
Tel: 214-969-7639 Fax: 214- 969-7615
ATT(')RNEYS, FOR PLAINTIFF

_Letter of January 3, 2011 from Bryan Garner Vice Pre31dent Credlt Alhance

N : Group, Inc., to the Texas Office of Consumer Credit Commissioner;
Exhibit B

Excerpts of sworn statement under oath by former CAG accou.ntmg department
employee, conducted on February 22, 2013;

Letter of August 9, 2012, from the Texas Office of Consumer Credlt
Commissioner to CAG Denying Registration;

Customer Affidavit #1;

Customer Affidavit #2 - Credit Services Today (a’k/a CAG) customer;

CAG Customer Enrollment Marketing Packet and 2009 Contract;

CAG Customer Enrollment Marketing Packet and 2010 Contract;

Customer Escrow Account Balance Records from Credit Alliance Group, Inc.;
Credit Services Today documents (a/k/a Credit Alliance Group, Inc.);

Affidavit of Kelle Slaughter, Investigator, Office of the Texas Attorney General
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